Packet Pg. 1
PUBLIC NOTICE OF MEETING

WOODWAY CITY COUNCIL
SEPTEMBER 8, 2025 — 5:30 P.M.

TAKE NOTICE THAT A REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
WOODWAY, TEXAS, WILL BE HELD IN THE DONALD J. BAKER COUNCIL CHAMBERS AT
WOODWAY CITY HALL, 922 ESTATES DRIVE, WOODWAY, TEXAS, COMMENCING AT 5:30
P.M. ON MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 8, 2025, TO CONSIDER AND ACT UPON ANY LAWFUL
SUBJECT WHICH MAY COME BEFORE IT INCLUDING, AMONG OTHERS, THE ITEMS
LISTED BELOW.

AGENDA

CALL MEETING TO ORDER

INVOCATION

1. Invocation

2. Pledge of Allegiance

PUBLIC COMMENT

3. The City Council invites citizens to address the Council on any matter, including items on the
agenda, except public hearings that are included on the agenda. Comments related to Public
Hearings will be heard when the specific hearing starts. Please limit your comments to three (3)
minutes per Resolution R-87-11. The Council is not permitted to take any action or discuss any
item not listed on the agenda. When called to speak, please state your name and address, and if
speaking on a specific agenda item, state the item before beginning your comments

PRESENTATIONS

4, Presentation of Yard of the Month for September

ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL DISCUSSION, CONSIDERATION AND/OR ACTION

5. Discussion and consider action on minutes of the regular City Council meeting held August 25,
2025, at 5:30 p.m.



Packet Pg. 2

WOODWAY CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
Page 2
September 8, 2025 - 5:30 P.M.

6. Discussion and consider action on Ordinance 25-04, approving a negotiated settlement between the
ATMOS Cities Steering Committee (“ACSC”) and Atmos Energy Corp., Mid-Tex Division regarding the
Company’s 2025 rate review mechanism filing; declaring existing rates to be unreasonable; adopting tariffs
that reflect rate adjustments consistent with the negotiated settlement; finding the rates to be set by attached
settlement tariffs to be just and reasonable and in the public interest; approving an attachment establishing a
benchmark for pensions and retiree medical benefits and requiring the company to reimburse ACSC’s
reasonable ratemaking expenses

CITY MANAGER AND CITY COUNCIL REPORTS

7. City Manager’s Report (Briefings or updates may be provided regarding City services,
administrative/personnel matters, real estate/development, infrastructure, events, regulations,
community and intergovernmental relations issues.)

8. City Council Reports (Briefings or updates may be provided regarding City Council
committee and liaison assignments.)

CLOSING ITEM

9. Consider action on adjournment

The City Council may go into Executive Session on any item listed on the agenda in accordance with
Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code.

Councilmembers unable to attend in person may participate via videoconference in accordance with
Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code.

I certify that the above notice of meeting was posted at Woodway City Hall, 922 Estates Drive, Woodway,

Texas, on the 2" day of September 2025 at 5:00 p.m. u =
AA RN Jk A

Donna Barkley, City Secretary ( J

This facility is wheelchair accessible and accessible parking spaces are available. Requests for
accommodations or interpretive services must be made 48 hours prior to this meeting. Please contact the
City Secretary’s Office at (254) 772-4480 or FAX (254) 772-0695 for further information.




Packet Pg. 3 5
ITEM #_

WOODWAY CITY COUNCIL MINUTES

August 25,2025 — 5:30 p.m.

The Woodway City Council met in a regular meeting in the Donald J. Baker Council Chambers at
Woodway City Hall, 922 Estates Drive, Woodway, Texas, on Monday, August 25, 2025, at 5:30 p.m.
The following individuals were in attendance:

Mayor: Amine Qourzal

Mayor Pro Tem: Storey Cook

Councilmembers: David Russell, Janell Gilman, David Keyston (virtually), Ken Sury and
Dave Whitby

Councilmembers Absent: ~ None

City Manager: Adam Niolet

Assistant City Manager Jennifer Rogers

City Secretary: Donna Barkley

City Staff: Brenda Hernandez, Steven Dvorak, Khalil El-Halabi, Todd Gill and Kasia
Redden

Contract Staff: David Shaw, City Attorney

CALL MEETING TO ORDER

Mayor Qourzal called the meeting to order at 5:33 p.m.

INVOCATION AND PLEDGE

1. INVOCATION
Reverend Palmer provided the invocation.
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance to the United States Flag was recited in unity.

PUBLIC COMMENT

3. THE CITY COUNCIL INVITES CITIZENS TO ADDRESS THE COUNCIL ON ANY
MATTER, INCLUDING ITEMS ON THE AGENDA, EXCEPT PUBLIC HEARINGS THAT
ARE INCLUDED ON THE AGENDA. COMMENTS RELATED TO PUBLIC HEARINGS
WILL BE HEARD WHEN THE SPECIFIC HEARING STARTS. PLEASE LIMIT YOUR
COMMENTS TO THREE (3) MINUTES PER RESOLUTION R-87-11. THE COUNCIL IS
NOT PERMITTED TO TAKE ANY ACTION OR DISCUSS ANY ITEM NOT LISTED ON
THE AGENDA. WHEN CALLED TO SPEAK, PLEASE STATE YOUR NAME AND



Packet Pg. 4

WOODWAY CITY COUNCIL MINUTES
Page 2
August 25, 2025, at 5:30 p.m.

ADDRESS, AND IF SPEAKING ON A SPECIFIC AGENDA ITEM, STATE THE ITEM
BEFORE BEGINNING YOUR COMMENTS

There were no public comments.

PRESENTATIONS

4. INTRODUCTION OF NEW PUBLIC SAFETY OFFICER

Chief El-Halabi introduced the City’s newest Public Safety Officer, Dalton Wiethorn. He came to us fire and
EMS certified.

ITEMS RELATED TO PROPOSED FY 2026 ANNUAL BUDGET AND PROPOSED 2025 AD
VALOREM TAX RATE

5. PUBLIC HEARING ON PROPOSED FY 2026 ANNUAL BUDGET
Mayor Qourzal opened the public hearing.
There were no comments at this time.

With no one present to speak on the proposed budget, Mayor Qourzal closed the public hearing.

0. A. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDER ACTION ON ORDINANCE 25-01, ADOPTING THE
2025-2026 ANNUAL BUDGET

Mr. Niolet presented this item.

Mayor Pro Tem Cook moved to adopt Ordinance 25-01, adopting the City of Woodway 2025-2026 Annual
Budget. Councilmember Gilman seconded, and Mayor Qourzal read aloud the caption of the ordinance as
required. Voting in favor: Qourzal, Cook, Russell, Gilman, Keyston, Sury and Whitby. The motion passed
unanimously.

B. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDER ACTION ON RATIFICATION OF THE PROPERTY
TAX REVENUE INCREASE REFLECTED IN THE BUDGET

Mayor Pro Tem Cook moved ratify (approve) the property tax revenue increase reflected in the budget.
Councilmember Gilman seconded. Voting in favor: Qourzal, Cook, Gilman, Keyston, Sury and Whitby.

Voting against: Russell. The motion passed 6-1.

7. PUBLIC HEARING ON PROPOSED 2025 AD VALOREM TAX RATE



Packet Pg. 5

WOODWAY CITY COUNCIL MINUTES
Page 3
August 25, 2025, at 5:30 p.m.

Mayor Qourzal opened the public hearing.
e DJ Thomason, resident — Asked if the tax increase will make up for the short fall in street budgets?

With no one else present to speak on the proposed tax rate, Mayor Qourzal closed the public hearing.

8. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDER ACTION ON ORDINANCE 25-02, ADOPTING THE 2025
AD VALOREM TAX RATE

Mr. Niolet presented this item.

Mayor Pro Tem Cook moved that the property tax rate be increased by the adoption of a tax rate o£ 0.3638306,
which is effectively a 0.73 percent increase in the tax rate. Councilmember Gilman seconded and Mayor
Qourzal read aloud the caption of the ordinance as required. Voting in favor: Qourzal, Cook, Gilman, Sury
and Whitby. Voting against: Russell and Keyston. The motion passed 5-2.

9. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDER ACTION ON ORDINANCE 25-03, AMENDING CHAPTER
2, ADMINISTRATION, SECTION 2-5, CLASSIFICATION AND COMPENSATION PLAN
ADOPTED, OF THE CITY OF WOODWAY CODE OF ORDINANCES

Mr. Niolet presented this item.

Councilmember Russell moved to adopt Ordinance 25-03, amending Chapter 2, Administration, Section 2-5,
Classification and Compensation Plan Adopted, of the City of Woodway Code of Ordinances.
Councilmember Whitby seconded and Mayor Qourzal read aloud the caption of the ordinance as required,
and the motion passed unanimously.

10. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDER ACTION ON RESOLUTION R-25-13, AMENDING THE
CITY OF WOODWAY MASTER FEE SCHEDULE

Mr. Niolet presented this item.
Mayor Qourzal moved to adopt Resolution R-25-13 amending the City of Woodway Master Fee Schedule

and with an amendment to the open gym day passes, making those prices void for residents and applicable to
non-residents. Councilmember Russell seconded and the motion passed unanimously.

CONSENT AGENDA

The Consent Agenda consists of non-controversial, routine and budgeted items which require no public
hearing. The Consent Agenda is subject to being approved with one single motion, however, the Mayor or
any City Councilmember may remove any item from the Consent Agenda for separate discussion and



Packet Pg. 6

WOODWAY CITY COUNCIL MINUTES

Page 4

August 25, 2025, at 5:30 p.m.

consideration.

11. A.

DISCUSSION AND CONSIDER ACTION ON MINUTES OF THE REGULAR CITY
COUNCIL MEETING HELD AUGUST 11, 2025, AT 5:30 P.M.

DISCUSSION AND CONSIDER ACTION ON REQUEST FROM COURTNEY

ROGERS FOR THE RENEWAL OF A SPECIAL USE PERMIT FOR A HOME

OCCUPATION (PRIVATE SWIMMING LESSONS FOR 1-3 CHILDREN AT A
TIME) AT 13749 HARBOR DRIVE, WOODWAY, TEXAS

DISCUSSION AND CONSIDER ACTION ON REQUEST FROM JANNA
BEATTY FOR THE RENEWAL OF A SPECIAL USE PERMIT FOR A HOME
OCCUPATION (IMAGE CONSULTING BUSINESS) AT 8256 MOSSWOOD,
WOODWAY, TEXAS

DISCUSSION AND CONSIDER ACTION TO AWARD A CONTRACT IN
RESPONSE TO REQUEST FOR BIDS #25-04, FOR 2025 WATER
IMPROVEMENTS TO B-CORP UTILITIES, INC., THE LOWEST
RESPONSIBLE BIDDER, IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $281,299.81,
AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE ANY
DOCUMENTS IN CONNECTION THEREWITH

12. CONSIDER ACTION ON CONSENT AGENDA

Mayor Pro Tem Cook moved to approve the Consent Agenda as follows:

A.

Approve the minutes of the regular City Council meeting held August 11, 2025, at
5:30 p.m.

Approve request received from Courtney Rogers for the renewal of her Special Use
Permit for a Home Occupation (private swimming lessons for 1-3 children at a time)
at 13749 Harbor Drive, Woodway, Texas

Approve request from Janna Beatty for the renewal of her Special Use Permit for a
Home Occupation (Image Consultant/Makeovers) at 8256 Mosswood, Woodway,
Texas

Award contract in response to Bid #25-04, for 2025 Water Improvements to B-Corp
Utilities, Inc., the lowest responsible bidder, in an amount not to exceed $281,299.81,
and authorizing the City Manager to execute any documents in connection therewith

Councilmember Whitby seconded, and the motion passed unanimously.



Packet Pg. 7

WOODWAY CITY COUNCIL MINUTES
Page 5
August 25, 2025, at 5:30 p.m.

CITY MANAGER AND CITY COUNCIL REPORTS

13. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT (BRIEFINGS OR UPDATES MAY BE PROVIDED
REGARDING CITY SERVICES, ADMINISTRATIVE/PERSONNEL MATTERS, REAL
ESTATE/DEVELOPMENT, INFRASTRUCTURE, EVENTS, REGULATIONS,
COMMUNITY AND INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS ISSUES)

Mr. Niolet provided the following:

e Effective September 1%, the requirement for competitive bids moves from $50,000 to $100,000.
e Update on the bridge repairs on Estates Drive

14. CITY COUNCIL REPORTS

Councilmember Gilman — Provided an update on the August 12 Planning & Zoning meeting.
Councilmember Whitby — Parks & Recreation will meet on Thursday, August 28™

CLOSING ITEMS

15. CONSIDER ACTION ON ADJOURNMENT

Councilmember Russell moved to adjourn the meeting, Councilmember Gilman seconded, and the
meeting adjourned at 6:20 p.m.

Donna Barkley, City Secretary Amine Qourzal, Mayor



Packet Pg. 8 ép
ITEM #

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM FORM

Meeting Date: September 8, 2025 [ Presentation, Report and/or Discussion Only
[0 Public Hearing/Related Action

Prepared By: Mitch Davison B Individual Discussion/Action
[ Consent

Approved By: O Executive Session

7

Caption: /

Discussion and consider action on Ordinance 25-04, approving a negotiated settlement between the ATMOS Cities
Steering Committee (“ACSC”) and Atmos Energy Corp., Mid-Tex Division regarding the Company’s 2025 rate
review mechanism filing; declaring existing rates to be unreasonable; adopting tariffs that reflect rate adjustments
consistent with the negotiated settlement; finding the rates to be set by attached settlement tariffs to be just and
reasonable and in the public interest; approving an attachment establishing a benchmark for pensions and retiree
medical benefits and requiring the company to reimburse ACSC’s reasonable ratemaking expenses.

Background Information:

The City, along with 181 other Mid-Texas cities served by Atmos Energy Corporation, Mid-Tex Division (“Atmos
Mid-Tex” or “Company”), is a member of the Atmos Cities Steering Committee (“ACSC”). On April 1, 2025, the
Company filed a rate request under the RRM Tariff seeking $245.2 million in additional system-wide revenues. ACSC
consultants reviewed the filing and recommended $185.6 million. After settlement discussions, the case was resolved
for $205.6 million system-wide, effective October 1, 2025.

Financial Impact:

Total of Proposed Expenditure: N/A
Amount Budgeted:

Account No.:

If not budgeted, other funding options:

Staff Recommendation:

Adopt Ordinance 25-04, approving a negotiated settlement between the ATMOS Cities Steering Committee (“ACSC”)
and Atmos Energy Corp., Mid-Tex Division regarding the Company’s 2025 rate review mechanism filing; declaring
existing rate adjustments consistent with the negotiated settlement; finding the rates to be set by attached settlement
tariffs to be just and reasonable and in the public interest; approving an attachment establishing a benchmark for
pensions and retiree medical benefits and requiring the company to reimburse ACSC’s reasonable ratemaking
expenses.




Packet Pg. 9

ORDINANCE NO. 25-04

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
WOODWAY, TEXAS, APPROVING A NEGOTIATED
SETTLEMENT BETWEEN THE ATMOS CITIES STEERING
COMMITTEE (“ACSC”) AND ATMOS ENERGY CORP., MID-TEX
DIVISION REGARDING THE COMPANY’S 2025 RATE REVIEW
MECHANISM FILING; DECLARING EXISTING RATES TO BE
UNREASONABLE; ADOPTING TARIFFS THAT REFLECT RATE
ADJUSTMENTS CONSISTENT WITH THE NEGOTIATED
SETTLEMENT; FINDING THE RATES TO BE SET BY THE
ATTACHED SETTLEMENT TARIFFS TO BE JUST AND
REASONABLE AND IN THE PUBLIC INTEREST; APPROVING
AN ATTACHMENT ESTABLISHING A BENCHMARK FOR
PENSIONS AND RETIREE MEDICAL BENEFITS; REQUIRING
THE COMPANY TO REIMBURSE ACSC’S REASONABLE
RATEMAKING EXPENSES; DETERMINING THAT THIS
ORDINANCE WAS PASSED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE
REQUIREMENTS OF THE TEXAS OPEN MEETINGS ACT;
ADOPTING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; DECLARING AN EFFECTIVE
DATE; AND REQUIRING DELIVERY OF THIS ORDINANCE TO
THE COMPANY AND THE ACSC’S LEGAL COUNSEL.

WHEREAS, the City of Woodway, Texas (“City”) is a gas utility customer of Atmos
Energy Corp., Mid-Tex Division (“Atmos Mid-Tex” or “Company”), and a regulatory authority
with an interest in the rates, charges, and services of Atmos Mid-Tex; and

WHEREAS, the City is a member of the Atmos Cities Steering Committee (“ACSC”), a
coalition of similarly-situated cities served by Atmos Mid-Tex (“ACSC Cities”) that have joined
together to facilitate the review of, and response to, natural gas issues affecting rates charged in
the Atmos Mid-Tex service area; and

WHEREAS, ACSC and the Company worked collaboratively to develop a Rate Review
Mechanism (“RRM”) tariff that allows for an expedited rate review process by ACSC Cities as a

substitute to the Gas Reliability Infrastructure Program (“GRIP”) process instituted by the



Packet Pg. 10

Legislature, and that will establish rates for the ACSC Cities based on the system-wide cost of
serving the Atmos Mid-Tex Division; and

WHEREAS, the current RRM tariff was adopted by the City in a rate ordinance in
2018; and

WHEREAS, on about April 1, 2025 Atmos Mid-Tex filed its 2025 RRM rate request with
ACSC Cities based on a test year ending December 31, 2024; and

WHEREAS, ACSC coordinated its review of the Atmos Mid-Tex 2025 RRM filing
through its Executive Committee, assisted by ACSC’s attorneys and consultants, to resolve issues
identified in the Company’s RRM filing; and

WHEREAS, the Executive Committee, as well as ACSC’s counsel and consultants,
recommend that ACSC Cities approve an increase in base rates for Atmos Mid-Tex of $205.6
million on a system-wide basis with an Effective Date of October 1, 2025; and

WHEREAS, ACSC agrees that Atmos plant-in-service is reasonable; and

WHEREAS, with the exception of approved plant-in-service, ACSC is not foreclosed from
future reasonableness evaluation of costs associated with incidents related to gas leaks; and

WHEREAS, the attached tariffs (Attachment 1) implementing new rates are consistent
with the recommendation of the ACSC Executive Committee, are agreed to by the Company, and
are just, reasonable, and in the public interest; and

WHEREAS, the settlement agreement sets a new benchmark for pensions and retiree
medical benefits (Attachment 2); and

WHEREAS, the RRM Tariff contemplates reimbursement of ACSC’s reasonable expenses

associated with RRM applications.



Packet Pg. 11

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
WOODWAY, TEXAS:

Section 1. That the findings set forth in this Ordinance are hereby in all things approved.

Section 2. That, without prejudice to future litigation of any issue identified by ACSC,
the City Council finds that the settled amount of an increase in revenues of $205.6 million on a
system-wide basis represents a comprehensive settlement of gas utility rate issues affecting the
rates, operations, and services offered by Atmos Mid-Tex within the municipal limits arising from
Atmos Mid-Tex’s 2025 RRM filing, is in the public interest, and is consistent with the City’s
authority under Section 103.001 of the Texas Utilities Code.

Section 3. That despite finding Atmos Mid-Tex’s plant-in-service to be reasonable, ACSC
is not foreclosed in future cases from evaluating the reasonableness of costs associated with
incidents involving leaks of natural gas.

Section 4. That the existing rates for natural gas service provided by Atmos Mid-Tex are
unreasonable. The new tariffs attached hereto and incorporated herein as Attachment 1, are just
and reasonable, and are designed to allow Atmos Mid-Tex to recover annually an additional $205.6
million on a system-wide basis, over the amount allowed under currently approved rates. Such
tariffs are hereby adopted.

Section 5. That the ratemaking treatment for pensions and retiree medical benefits in
Atmos Mid-Tex’s next RRM filing shall be as set forth on Attachment 2, attached hereto and
incorporated herein.

Section 6. That Atmos Mid-Tex shall reimburse the reasonable ratemaking expenses of

ACSC in processing the Company’s 2025 RRM filing.



Packet Pg. 12

Section 7. That to the extent any resolution or ordinance previously adopted by the Council
is inconsistent with this Ordinance, it is hereby repealed.

Section 8. That the meeting at which this Ordinance was approved was in all things
conducted in strict compliance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, Texas Government Code,
Chapter 551.

Section 9. That if any one or more sections or clauses of this Ordinance is adjudged to be
unconstitutional or invalid, such judgment shall not affect, impair, or invalidate the remaining
provisions of this Ordinance, and the remaining provisions of the Ordinance shall be interpreted
as if the offending section or clause never existed.

Section 10. That consistent with the City Ordinance that established the RRM process,
this Ordinance shall become effective from and after its passage with rates authorized by attached
tariffs to be effective for bills rendered on or after October 1, 2025.

Section 11. That a copy of this Ordinance shall be sent to Atmos Mid-Tex, care of Chris
Felan, Vice President of Rates and Regulatory Affairs Mid-Tex Division, Atmos Energy
Corporation, 5420 LBJ Freeway, Suite 1862, Dallas, Texas 75240, and to Thomas Brocato,
General Counsel to ACSC, at Lloyd Gosselink Rochelle & Townsend, P.C., 816 Congress Avenue,

Suite 1900, Austin, Texas 78701.



Packet Pg. 13

DULY PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
WOODWAY TEXAS, BY A VOTE OF TO , ON THIS THE 8TH DAY OF
SEPTEMBER 2025.

Amine Qourzal, Mayor

ATTEST:

Donna Barkley, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

David Shaw, City Attorney

2557/39/9074967 5



Packet Pg. 14 ATTACHMENT 1

MID-TEX DIVISION
ATMOS ENERGY CORPORATION

RATE SCHEDULE: R — RESIDENTIAL SALES
APPLICABLE TO: ALL CUSTOMERS IN THE MID-TEX DIVISION UNDER THE RRM TARIFF
EFFECTIVE DATE: Bills Rendered on or after 10/01/2025

Application

Applicable to Residential Customers for all natural gas provided at one Point of Delivery and measured
through one meter.

Type of Service

Where service of the type desired by Customer is not already available at the Point of Delivery, additional
charges and special contract arrangements between Company and Customer may be required prior to
service being furnished.

Monthly Rate

Customer's monthly bill will be calculated by adding the following Customer and Ccf charges to the
amounts due under the riders listed below:

Charge Amount
Customer Charge per Bill $ 23.65 per month
Rider CEE Surcharge $0.03 per month'!
Total Customer Charge $ 23.68 per month
Commodity Charge — All Ccf $ 0.74748 per Ccf

Gas Cost Recovery: Plus an amount for gas costs and upstream transportation costs calculated
in accordance with Part (a) and Part (b), respectively, of Rider GCR.

Weather Normalization Adjustment: Plus or Minus an amount for weather normalization
calculated in accordance with Rider WNA.

Franchise Fee Adjustment: Plus an amount for franchise fees calculated in accordance with Rider
FF. Rider FF is only applicable to customers inside the corporate limits of any incorporated
municipality.

Tax Adjustment: Plus an amount for tax calculated in accordance with Rider TAX.

Surcharges: Plus an amount for surcharges calculated in accordance with the applicable rider(s).

Agreement
An Agreement for Gas Service may be required.

Notice

Service hereunder and the rates for services provided are subject to the orders of regulatory bodies
having jurisdiction and to the Company’s Tariff for Gas Service.

'Reference Rider CEE - Conservation and Energy Efficiency as approved in GUD 10170. Surcharge billing effective July 1, 2025.



Packet Pg. 15

MID-TEX DIVISION
ATMOS ENERGY CORPORATION

RATE SCHEDULE: C - COMMERCIAL SALES
APPLICABLE TO: ALL CUSTOMERS IN THE MID-TEX DIVISION UNDER THE RRM TARIFF
EFFECTIVE DATE: Bills Rendered on or after 10/01/2025

Application

Applicable to Commercial Customers for all natural gas provided at one Point of Delivery and measured
through one meter and to Industrial Customers with an average annual usage of less than 30,000 Ccf.

Type of Service

Where service of the type desired by Customer is not already available at the Point of Delivery, additional
charges and special contract arrangements between Company and Customer may be required prior to
service being furnished.

Monthly Rate

Customer's monthly bill will be calculated by adding the following Customer and Ccf charges to the
amounts due under the riders listed below:

Charge Amount
Customer Charge per Bill $ 94.00 per month
Rider CEE Surcharge $0.01 per month'
Total Customer Charge $ 94.01 per month
Commodity Charge — All Ccf $ 0.22261 per Ccf

Gas Cost Recovery: Plus an amount for gas costs and upstream transportation costs calculated
in accordance with Part (a) and Part (b), respectively, of Rider GCR.

Weather Normalization Adjustment: Plus or Minus an amount for weather normalization
calculated in accordance with Rider WNA.

Franchise Fee Adjustment: Plus an amount for franchise fees calculated in accordance with Rider
FF. Rider FF is only applicable to customers inside the corporate limits of any incorporated
municipality.

Tax Adjustment: Plus an amount for tax calculated in accordance with Rider TAX.

Surcharges: Plus an amount for surcharges calculated in accordance with the applicable rider(s).

Agreement
An Agreement for Gas Service may be required.

Notice
Service hereunder and the rates for services provided are subject to the orders of regulatory bodies
having jurisdiction and to the Company’s Tariff for Gas Service.

Presumption of Plant Protection Level

For service under this Rate Schedule, plant protection volumes are presumed to be 10% of normal,
regular, historical usage as reasonably calculated by the Company in its sole discretion. If a customer
believes it needs to be modeled at an alternative plant protection volume, it should contact the company
at mdtx-div-plantprotection(@atmosenergy.com.

! Reference Rider CEE - Conservation and Energy Efficiency as approved in GUD 10170. Surcharge billing effective July 1, 2025.



Packet Pg. 16

MID-TEX DIVISION
ATMOS ENERGY CORPORATION

RATE SCHEDULE: | - INDUSTRIAL SALES

APPLICABLE TO: ALL CUSTOMERS IN THE MID-TEX DIVISION UNDER THE RRM TARIFF

EFFECTIVE DATE: Bills Rendered on or after 10/01/2025

Application

Applicable to Industrial Customers with a maximum daily usage (MDU) of less than 200 MMBtu per day
for all natural gas provided at one Point of Delivery and measured through one meter. Service for
Industrial Customers with an MDU equal to or greater than 200 MMBtu per day will be provided at
Company's sole option and will require special contract arrangements between Company and Customer.

Type of Service

Where service of the type desired by Customer is not already available at the Point of Delivery, additional
charges and special contract arrangements between Company and Customer may be required prior to
service being furnished.

Monthly Rate
Customer's monthly bill will be calculated by adding the following Customer and MMBtu charges to the
amounts due under the riders listed below:

Charge Amount

Customer Charge per Meter $ 1,848.75 per month
First 0 MMBtu to 1,500 MMBtu $ 0.7678 per MMBtu
Next 3,500 MMBtu $ 0.5623 per MMBtu
All MMBtu over 5,000 MMBtu $ 0.1206 per MMBtu

Gas Cost Recovery: Plus an amount for gas costs and upstream transportation costs calculated
in accordance with Part (a) and Part (b), respectively, of Rider GCR.

Franchise Fee Adjustment: Plus an amount for franchise fees calculated in accordance with Rider
FF. Rider FF is only applicable to customers inside the corporate limits of any incorporated
municipality.

Tax Adjustment: Plus an amount for tax calculated in accordance with Rider TAX.
Surcharges: Plus an amount for surcharges calculated in accordance with the applicable rider(s).

Curtailment Overpull Fee

Upon notification by Company of an event of curtailment or interruption of Customer’'s deliveries,
Customer will, for each MMBtu delivered in excess of the stated level of curtailment or interruption, pay
Company 200% of the midpoint price for the Katy point listed in Platts Gas Daily published for the
applicable Gas Day in the table entitled “Daily Price Survey.”

Replacement Index

In the event the “midpoint” or “common” price for the Katy point listed in Platts Gas Daily in the table
entitled “Daily Price Survey” is no longer published, Company will calculate the applicable imbalance fees
utilizing a daily price index recognized as authoritative by the natural gas industry and most closely
approximating the applicable index.



Packet Pg. 17

MiD-TEX DIVISION
ATMOS ENERGY CORPORATION

RATE SCHEDULE: | - INDUSTRIAL SALES

APPLICABLE TO: ALL CUSTOMERS IN THE MID-TEX DIVISION UNDER THE RRM TARIFF

EFFECTIVE DATE: Bills Rendered on or after 10/01/2025

Agreement
An Agreement for Gas Service may be required.

Notice

Service hereunder and the rates for services provided are subject to the orders of regulatory bodies
having jurisdiction and to the Company’s Tariff for Gas Service.

Special Conditions
In order to receive service under Rate |, Customer must have the type of meter required by Company.
Customer must pay Company all costs associated with the acquisition and installation of the meter.

Presumption of Plant Protection Level

For service under this Rate Schedule, plant protection volumes are presumed to be 10% of normal,
regular, historical usage as reasonably calculated by the Company in its sole discretion. If a customer
believes it needs to be modeled at an alternative plant protection volume, it should contact the company
at mdtx-div-plantprotection@atmosenergy.com.




Packet Pg. 18

MID-TEX DIVISION
ATMOS ENERGY CORPORATION

RATE SCHEDULE: T - TRANSPORTATION

APPLICABLE TO: ALL CUSTOMERS IN THE MID-TEX DIVISION UNDER THE RRM TARIFF

EFFECTIVE DATE: Bills Rendered on or after 10/01/2025

Application

Applicable, in the event that Company has entered into a Transportation Agreement, to a customer
directly connected to the Atmos Energy Corp., Mid-Tex Division Distribution System (Customer) for the
transportation of all natural gas supplied by Customer or Customer’s agent at one Point of Delivery for
use in Customer's facility.

This tariff is not available to customers with a maximum daily demand of 1,000 MMBtu or greater and a
daily/annual load factor of 10% or less. Load factor is calculated as follows: annual usage / (maximum
daily connected demand X 365). Load factors will be recalculated once each year to determine
appropriate eligibility for Rate T.

Type of Service

Company’s receipt and delivery of all gas quantities under the applicable Transportation Agreement will be
on a wholly interruptible basis subject to the Terms and Conditions incorporated in the Transportation
Agreement. If Customer is an Industrial Customer, then Customer may elect, at the reasonable discretion
of Company, to contract for Plant Protection transportation quantities defined as the minimum natural gas
required to prevent physical harm and/or protect critical safety to the plant facilities, plant personnel, or the
public when such protection cannot be achieved through the use of an alternate fuel. Where service of the
type desired by Customer is not already available at the Point of Delivery, additional charges and special
contract arrangements between Company and Customer may be required prior to service being
furnished.

Monthly Rate
Customer's bill will be calculated by adding the following Customer and MMBtu charges to the amounts
and quantities due under the riders listed below:

Charge Amount

Customer Charge per Meter $ 1,848.75 per month
First 0 MMBtu to 1,500 MMBtu $ 0.7678 per MMBtu
Next 3,500 MMBtu $ 0.5623 per MMBtu
All MMBtu over 5,000 MMBtu $ 0.1206 per MMBtu

Upstream Transportation Cost Recovery: Plus an amount for upstream transportation costs in
accordance with Part (b) of Rider GCR.

Retention Adjustment: Plus a quantity of gas as calculated in accordance with Rider RA.
Franchise Fee Adjustment: Plus an amount for franchise fees calculated in accordance with Rider
FF. Rider FF is only applicable to customers inside the corporate limits of any incorporated
municipality.

Tax Adjustment: Plus an amount for tax calculated in accordance with Rider TAX.

Surcharges: Plus an amount for surcharges calculated in accordance with the applicable rider(s).



Packet Pg. 19

MID-TEX DIVISION
ATMOS ENERGY CORPORATION

RATE SCHEDULE: T - TRANSPORTATION

APPLICABLE TO: ALL CUSTOMERS IN THE MID-TEX DIVISION UNDER THE RRM TARIFF

EFFECTIVE DATE: Bills Rendered on or after 10/01/2025

Imbalance Fees

All fees charged to Customer under this Rate Schedule will be charged based on the quantities
determined under the applicable Transportation Agreement and quantities will not be aggregated for any
Customer with multiple Transportation Agreements for the purposes of such fees.

Monthly Imbalance Fees

Customer shall pay Company the greater of (i) $0.10 per MMBtu, or (i) 150% of the difference per MMBtu
between the highest and lowest “midpoint” price for the Katy point listed in Platts Gas Daily in the table
entitled “Daily Price Survey” during such month, for the MMBtu of Customer’s monthly Cumulative
Imbalance, as defined in the applicable Transportation Agreement, at the end of each month that exceeds
10% of Customer’s receipt quantities for the month.

Overpull Fee
Upon notification by Company of an event of interruption of Customer’s deliveries, Customer will, for each
MMBtu delivered in excess of the stated level of interruption, pay Company 200% of the midpoint price for
the Katy point listed in Plaits Gas Daily published for the applicable Gas Day in the table entitled “Daily
Price Survey.”

Replacement Index

In the event the “midpoint” or “common” price for the Katy point listed in Platts Gas Daily in the table
entitled “Daily Price Survey” is no longer published, Company will calculate the applicable imbalance fees
utilizing a daily price index recognized as authoritative by the natural gas industry and most closely
approximating the applicable index.

Agreement
A transportation agreement is required.

Notice
Service hereunder and the rates for services provided are subject to the orders of regulatory bodies
having jurisdiction and to the Company’s Tariff for Gas Service.

Special Conditions
In order to receive service under Rate T, customer must have the type of meter required by Company.
Customer must pay Company all costs associated with the acquisition and installation of the meter.



Packet Pg. 20

MID-TEX DIVISION
ATMOS ENERGY CORPORATION

RIDER: SUR -~ SURCHARGES

APPLICABLE TO: ALL CUSTOMERS IN THE MID-TEX DIVISION UNDER THE RRM TARIFF

EFFECTIVE DATE: Bills Rendered on or after 10/01/2025

Application

This Rider is applicable to customer classes in the incorporated areas under the RRM tariff as authorized
by the state or any governmental entity, a municipality, or a regulatory authority pursuant to any statute,
ordinance, order, rule, contract, or agreement.

Monthly Calculation

Surcharges will be calculated in accordance with the applicable statute, ordinance, order, rule, contract,

or agreement.

FASB ASC 740-10 (Fin48) Refund

Applicable to Customers taking service under Rate Schedules R — Residential, C — Commercial, | —
Industrial and T — Transportation.

To ensure that gas utility customers receive the benefit associated with the changes in the Company’s
Uncertain Tax Positions (“UTPs”) arising from recognition of Texas Margin Tax returns.

The decrease shall be calculated as follows:

Beginning with implementation of rates from the negotiated RRM Tariff, and annually thereafter, the
portion of UTP liabilities identified in Schedule FIN48-1.1 for the prior fiscal year shall be allocated based
on the final class allocations of GUD No. 10170 as per the RRM Tariff, divided by the annual bill count to
derive rates to be refunded through Rider SUR in the subsequent fiscal year. Each year’s calculation will
include a true-up (+ or - ) due to account for over/under collections. Amounts identified in Schedule
FIN48-1 shall be adjusted to reflect any audit adjustments received from the Texas Comptroller of Public
Accounts.

No action on the part of the Regulatory Authority is required to give effect to the amount to be refunded to
customers. However, any amount refunded to customers shall be fully subject to review for
reasonableness and accuracy in the gas utility’s next statement of intent proceeding with the Railroad
Commission of Texas, and if applicable, the gas utility shall be required to reconcile any discrepancies.

The following refund as authorized in the most recent negotiated RRM Tariff shall be refunded to each
Rate Schedules R — Residential, C — Commercial, | — Industrial and T — Transportation customer’s
monthly bill in each month for a 12-month period. The refund amount by month by Rate Schedule is
shown in the table below:

Rate Schedules Rate

Rate R — Residential Sales $(0.12)
Rate C — Commercial Sales $ (0.41)
Rate | — Industrial Sales $ (8.68)
Rate T — Transportation $ (8.68)




Packet Pg. 21

MID-TEX DIVISION
ATMOS ENERGY CORPORATION

RIDER: TAX - TAX ADJUSTMENT

APPLICABLE TO: Entire Division as Set Forth Below

EFFECTIVE DATE: Bills Rendered on or after 10/01/2025 PAGE:

Application

Applicable to Customers taking service under Rate R, Rate C, Rate |, and Rate T, except for exempt
State Agency Customers, to the extent of state gross receipts taxes only.

1. State Gross Receipts Taxes

Applicability - Entire Division except for Unincorporated Areas

Each monthly bill shall be adjusted for Miscellaneous state gross receipts taxes imposed by Sections
182-021 - 182-025 of the Texas Tax Code.

Entire Division

Each monthly bill shall also be adjusted by an amount equivalent to the amount of all applicable taxes
and any other governmental impositions, rentals, fees, or charges (except state, county, city, and special
district ad valorem taxes and taxes on net income) levied, assessed, or imposed upon or allocated to
Company with respect to the Gas Service provided to Customer by Company, and any associated
facilities involved in the performance of such Gas Service. Each monthly bill shall also be adjusted by an
amount equivalent to the proportionate part of any increase or decrease of any tax and any other
governmental imposition, rental, fee, or charge (except state, county, city, and special district ad valorem
taxes and taxes on net income) levied, assessed, or imposed subsequent to the effective date of this
tariff, upon or allocated to Company's operations, by any new or amended law, ordinance, or contract.

2. Federal or State Tax Law or Rate Changes:

Applicability — All Customers in the Mid-Tex Division (“MTX”) Under the RRM Tariff
Applicable to Customers taking service under Rate R, Rate C, Rate |, and Rate T.

To ensure that gas utility customers receive the benefits or costs associated with the changes in tax rates
at a federal or state level, MTX shall establish and accrue on its books and records, as of the effective
date of the federal or state tax law or rate change: 1) regulatory liabilities to reflect the impact of a
decrease in federal corporate income tax rates or state margin tax rates; or, 2) regulatory assets to reflect
the impact of an increase in federal corporate income tax rates or state margin tax rates.

The gas utility may not change rates to give effect to a change in Federal or State Tax law or rates
through the Rider TAX unless and until the city issues final authorization, an Accounting Order, or other
express guidance authorizing such recovery through the RRM process.

Company may also not change rates to capture the impacts associated with the effects of_Public Law
117-169, 136 STAT. 1818 of August 16, 2022 (“Tax Act 2022") and certain other tax-related costs that will
change from the amounts included in the most recent base revenue requirement established through an
RRM filing unless and until the city issues a final authorization, an Accounting Order, or other express
guidance authorizing such recovery.

Upon receipt of authorization from the city through an Accounting Order, final authorization or other
express guidance, the calculation applicable to the aforementioned federal or state tax rate or law
changes are as follows; however, to the extent there is a conflict between the calculation or methodology



Packet Pg. 22

MID-TEX DIVISION
ATMOS ENERGY CORPORATION

RIDER:

TAX - TAX ADJUSTMENT

APPLICABLE TO: Entire Division as Set Forth Below

EFFECTIVE DATE: Bills Rendered on or after 10/01/2025 PAGE:

prescribed by an Accounting Order, final authorization, or other express guidance, and those contained in
this rate schedule, the Accounting Order, final authorization, or other express guidance controls:

Calculations

1. With regard to changes in the tax rates at a federal or state level, the increase or decrease shall
be calculated as follows:

a.

A portion of the gas utility’s revenue representing the difference between: 1) the cost of
service as approved by the Commission or the applicable regulatory authority in the gas
utility’s most recent statement of intent or other rate proceeding, and 2) the cost of service
that would have resulted had the rates been based on the new federal income tax rate
(increase or decrease) or state margin taxes (increase or decrease), as of the effective date
of the change;

If applicable, the portion of the gas utility’s revenue representing the difference between: 1)
each Interim Rate Adjustment surcharge approved by the regulatory authority since the gas
utility’s most recent statement of intent or other rate proceeding, and 2) each Interim Rate
Adjustment surcharge that would have resulted had the surcharges been based on the new
federal income tax rate (increase or decrease) or state margin taxes (increase or decrease),
as of the effective date of the change; and

The excess or deficient deferred tax reserve, including any associated gross up in taxes,
caused by the reduction or increase in the federal corporate income tax rate or state related
tax increases, as of the effective date of the change.

Upon the receipt of authorization from the Commission or applicable regulatory authority, the gas utility
shall separately refund to customers based on a decrease in federal or state tax rates or separately
collect from customers based on an increase in federal or state tax rates within twelve (12) months or,
pursuant to applicable Internal Revenue Code (“IRC”) rules and regulations, as follows:

d.

The amount collected/refunded by the gas utility that reflects the difference in base rates
between: 1) the cost of service approved by the regulatory authority in the gas utility’s most
recent statement of intent rate proceeding, and 2) the cost of service that would have resulted
had the rates been based upon the new federal or state tax rates, between the effective date
of this order and the effective date of the changes.

If applicable, the amount collected/refunded by the gas utility that reflects the difference
between: 1) each Interim Rate Adjustment surcharge approved by the Commission or the
regulatory authority since the gas utility’s most recent statement of intent rate proceeding,
and 2) each Interim Rate Adjustment surcharge that would have resulted had the rates been
based upon the new federal or state tax rates, between the effective date of this order and
the effective date of the changes.

The amount collected/refunded by the gas utility that reflects the difference in the excess or
deficient deferred tax reserve included in base rates between: 1) the cost of service
approved by the Commission or the regulatory authority in the gas utility’s most recent
statement of intent rate proceeding, and 2) the cost of service that would have resulted had
the rates been based upon the new federal or state tax rates, between the effective date of
this order and the effective date of the changes. These amounts shall be refunded or
collected from customers based upon IRC rules and regulations if applicable.



Packet Pg. 23

MID-TEX DIVISION
ATMOS ENERGY CORPORATION

RIDER: TAX -~ TAX ADJUSTMENT

APPLICABLE TO: Entire Division as Set Forth Below

EFFECTIVE DATE: Bills Rendered on or after 10/01/2025 PAGE:

2. With regard to the Tax Act 2022 and certain other tax-related costs that will change from the
amounts included in the base revenue requirement established through an RRM filing, any
change in rates shall be calculated as follows:

(a) The amount shall be calculated as the product of Company’s grossed-up rate of return
authorized in the cost of service as approved by the Commission or the applicable regulatory
authority in the gas utility’s most recent statement of intent or other rate proceeding times the
Corporate Alternative Minimum Tax deferred tax asset (“CAMT DTA") estimated at
September 30 of the fiscal year or applicable quarter-end within a fiscal year prior to the
annual change in the rates pursuant to this tariff, less the income tax credits received in
accordance with IRC requirements applicable to the Tax Act 2022 grossed-up for income
taxes to a revenue equivalent.

(b) The estimated CAMT DTA and the related effects on the rider revenue requirements shall be
trued up to the actual effects in the following year and the over/under recovery amortized
over the twelve months that each year’s recalculated tariff rates are in effect. The over/under
recovery shall include a grossed-up rate of return as authorized in Company’s most recent
statement of intent or other rate proceeding.

(c) The methodology for computing Company's CAMT is as follows:

i. Confirm when Atmos Energy Corporation and its affiliates are subject to CAMT
as an “applicable corporation” as defined the Tax Act 2022, then there will be
MTX's CAMT DTA in the tariff.

ii. Calculate the Mid-Tex Division’'s (MTX) contribution to Adjusted Financial
Statement Income (“AFSI”) on a stand-alone basis. MTX's AFSI is calculated by
adjusting MTX's applicable financial statement income by adjustments to
depreciation, pension costs and federal income tax to arrive at AFSI. AFSI is
intended to be computed consistent with applicable IRC requirements.

iii. Compare MTX's CAMT stand-alone amount with MTX’s regular stand-alone tax
liability. If the stand alone CAMT is in excess of the stand-alone regular tax, the
CAMT DTA is recorded to MTX.

If the Internal Revenue Service issues new guidance related to the Tax Act 2022, Company shall have
the right to make additional filings to recognize such adjustments.

Any Commission filing made to give effect to Federal or State Tax Law or Rate Changes shall be filed
within 12-months following the enactment of a tax rate change with the Commission’s Oversight and
Safety Division or as part of a Statement of Intent.

Any city filing made to give effect to Federal or State Tax Law or Rate Changes shall be filed within 12-
months following the enactment of a tax rate change and addressed to the city official at the address of
record with the Mid-Tex Division.

With the exception of the authorization required from the Commission to allow the gas utility to recognize
the new federal income tax rate (increase or decrease) or state taxes (increase or decrease) or the
impacts associated with the effects of the Tax Act 2022 and certain other tax-related costs that will
change from the amounts included in the base revenue requirement in the last approved RRM Tariff filing,
no action on the part of the regulatory authority is required to give effect to the amount to be refunded or



Packet Pg. 24

MID-TEX DIVISION
ATMOS ENERGY CORPORATION

RIDER: TAX - TAX ADJUSTMENT

APPLICABLE TO: Entire Division as Set Forth Below

EFFECTIVE DATE: Bills Rendered on or after 10/01/2025 PAGE:

collected from customers. However, any amount refunded or collected from customers shall be fully
subject to review for reasonableness and accuracy in the gas utility’s next statement of intent proceeding,
and if applicable, the gas utility shall be required to reconcile any discrepancies.

Regulatory orders issued pursuant to this mechanism are ratemaking orders and shall be subject to
appeal under Sections 102.001(b) and 103.021, et seq., of the Texas Utilities Code (Vernon 2007). Rate
changes subject to the provisions of this tariff may be implemented upon the filing of an appeal to the
relevant authority.



Packet Pg. 25

MID-TEX DIVISION

ATMOS ENERGY CORPORATION

RIDER:

WNA - WEATHER NORMALIZATION ADJUSTMENT

APPLICABLE TO:

ALL CUSTOMERS IN THE MID-TEX DIVISION UNDER THE RRM TARIFF

EFFECTIVE DATE:

Bills Rendered on or after 10/01/2025

Provisions for Adjustment

The Commodity Charge per Ccf (100 cubic feet) for gas service set forth in any Rate Schedules utilized
by the cities of the Mid-Tex Division service area for determining normalized winter period revenues shall
be adjusted by an amount hereinafter described, which amount is referred to as the "Weather
Normalization Adjustment." The Weather Normalization Adjustment shall apply to all temperature
sensitive residential and commercial bills based on meters read during the revenue months of November

through April. The five regional weather stations are Abilene, Austin, Dallas, Waco, and Wichita Falls.

Computation of Weather Normalization Adjustment

The Weather Normalization Adjustment Factor shall be computed to the nearest one-hundredth cent
per Ccf by the following formula:

WNAF; =

Where

WNAF; =

HSF; =
NDD =

ADD =

Bl =

(HSF; X (NDD-ADD) )
R

(BL; + (HSF; x ADD) )
any particular Rate Schedule or billing classification within any such
particular Rate Schedule that contains more than one billing classification

Weather Normalization Adjustment Factor for the ith rate schedule or
classification expressed in cents per Ccf

Commodity Charge rate of temperature sensitive sales for the ith schedule or
classification.

heat sensitive factor for the ith schedule or classification divided by the
average bill count in that class

billing cycle normal heating degree days calculated as the simple ten-year
average of actual heating degree days.

billing cycle actual heating degree days.

base load sales for the ith schedule or classification divided by the average
bill count in that class

The Weather Normalization Adjustment for the jth customer in ith rate schedule is computed as:

WNA; = WNAFi x qjj

Where qj is the relevant sales quantity for the jth customer in ith rate schedule.




Packet Pg. 26

MID-TEX DIVISION
ATMOS ENERGY CORPORATION

RIDER: WNA — WEATHER NORMALIZATION ADJUSTMENT

APPLICABLE TO: ALL CUSTOMERS IN THE MID-TEX DIVISION UNDER THE RRNM TARIFF

EFFECTIVE DATE: Bills Rendered on or after 10/01/2025

Base Use/Heat Use Factors

Residential Commercial

Base use Heat use Base use Heat use

Weather Station Ccf Ccf/HDD Ccf Ccf/HDD
Abilene 9.61 0.1476 91.65 0.7406
Austin 8.19 0.1394 183.99 1.1581
Dallas 12.74 0.2017 193.53 1.1001
Waco 9.23 0.1277 148.26 0.7631
Wichita 10.43 0.1387 122.94 0.7038

Falls

Weather Normalization Adjustment (WNA) Report

On or Dbefore June 1 of each year, the company posts on its website at
www.atmosenergy.com/MTXtariffs, in Excel format, a Weather Normalization Adjustment (WNA) Report
to show how the company calculated its WNAs factor during the preceding winter season. Additionally,
on or before June 1 of each year, the company files one hard copy and an Excel version of the WNA

Report with the Railroad Commission of Texas' Gas Services Division, addressed to the Director of that
Division.



Packet Pg.

27

ATMOS ENERGY CORP., MID-TEX DIVISION

ATTACHMENT 2

MID-TEX RATE REVIEW MECHANISM
PENSIONS AND RETIREE MEDICAL BENEFITS FOR CITIES APPROVAL
TEST YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2024

Shared Services

Mid-Tex Direct

Post- Post- Supplemental
Line Pension Employment Pension Employment Executive Benefit| Adjustment
No. Description Account Plan Benefit Plan Account Plan Benefit Plan Plan Total
(a) (b) () (d) (e) ® (@
1 Proposed Benefits Benchmark -
Fiscal Year 2025 Willis Towers Watson Report as adjusted $ 572,372 $ (649,253) $ 882,931 $§  (3,920,499) $ 65,943

2 Allocation Factor 46.27% 46.27% 84.14% 84.14% 100.00%

3 Proposed Benefits Benchmark Costs Allocated to Mid-Tex (Ln 1 x Ln 2) $ 264,856 § (300,432) $ 742,888 $  (3,298,664) $ 65,943

4 O&M and Capital Allocation Factor 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

5 Proposed Benefits Benchmark Costs to Approve (Ln 3 x Ln 4) 3 264,856 $ (300,432) $ 742,888 §  (3,298,664) $ 65,943 $ (2,525,408)

6

7 O&M Expense Factor 76.41% 76.41% 39.54% 39.54% 10.97%

8

9  Summary of Costs to Approve:

10 Total Pension Account Plan $ 202,374 $ 293,727 $ 496,101
11 Total Post-Employment Benefit Plan $ (229,557) $  (1,304,242) (1,533,799)
12 Total Supplemental Executive Benefit Plan 7,231 7,231
13 Total (Ln 10 + Ln 11 + Ln 12) 3 202,374 % (229,557) $ 293,727 §  (1,304,242) § 7,231 $  (1,030,467)




Packet Pg. 28

MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS FOR COUNCIL

Distributed with September 8, 2025 City Council Meeting Packet

» Tentative list of agenda items for future meetings

Upcoming Calendar Items of Interest

- Monday, September 1 City offices closed for the Labor Day holiday
- Monday, September 8 Regular City Council meeting — 5:30 p.m.

- Monday, September 22 Regular City Council meeting — 5:30 p.m.




Packet Pg. 29

PENDING AGENDA ITEMS

WOODWAY CITY COUNCIL AND PLANNING/ZONING COMMISSION
(Updated 08/28/25)

This is a tentative planning calendar utilized to assist the City Secretary to compile draft meeting agendas.

DATE

CITY COUNCIL ITEMS

DATE

PLANNING & ZONING ITEMS

09/22

- D & CA to award of Bid 25-05 Demolition of the City of
WFC

09/23

- PH, D & CA on new Special Use Permit Home
Occupation for (pottery lessons for 1-3 students at a
time) 9501 Brookhollow Dr.

10/06

- PH, D & CA on new Special Use Permit Home
Occupation for (pottery lessons for 1-3 students at a time)
9501 Brookhollow Dr.

- Quarterly presentation — PS Dept.

- Quarterly presentation — Comm Serv Dept.

10/14

10727

- Quarterly presentation - Finance

10/28

RECURRING COUNCIL ITEMS:
- January/April/July/October (first meeting of the month) - Quarterly presentations - Public Safety and Community

Services

- January/April/July/October (second meeting of the month) - Quarterly presentation - Finance

- January/July (second Council meeting of the month) - Semi-annual presentations - Carleen Bright Arboretum and
Woodway Family Center

- Woodway Public Safety Association Day proclamation - Annually at the meeting prior to the annual cook-out
Appointment of Judges to Mumclpal Court of Record every two years (Next — 09/2026)

RECURRING P&Z ITEMS: Every six months - Update to P&Z from Building Official regarding current PUD projects

(Next 11/2025)




